
Public Facilities Committee Agenda 
Monday, May 18, 2020 at 4:00 PM 
(or immediately following Finance Committee) 
[This meeting is being held virtually in accordance with Beaufort 
County Resolution 2020-05] 

 
THIS MEETING WILL CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC.  CITIZEN COMMENTS AND PUBLIC HEARING 
COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED IN WRITING VIA EMAIL TO THE CLERK TO COUNCIL AT 
SBROCK@BCGOV.NET OR PO DRAWER 1228, BEAUFORT SC 29901. CITIZENS MAY ALSO CALL 
843-255-2041 TO SIGN UP FOR PUBLIC COMMENT PARTICIPATION BY PHONE AND CAN 
COMMENT DURING THE MEETING THROUGH FACEBOOK LIVE. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

3. [Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and 
distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information 
Act] 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - APRIL 20, 2020  
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

6. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO MAJ ENTERPRISES, INC. FOR IFB 
#041420E FT. FREMONT PRESERVE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
A TOTAL PROJECT COST OF $178,390 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF AN ACCESS AND PARKING EASEMENT ON COUNTY 
PROPERTY REFERRED TO AS MYRTLE PARK  

8. REQUEST AUTHORITY FOR THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT AWARD FOR RFQ 071019 FACILITIES 
MASTER PLAN CONSULTING SERVICES FOR A TOTAL COST OF 
$298,840. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 

9. UPDATE STATUS ON DECAL PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION  

10. DISCUSSION REGARDING CONTRACTUAL NEGOTIATIONS AND 
REFUND REQUEST FROM ZINN INVESTMENTS III, LLC. 

11. DISCUSSION OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND CONVENIENCE CENTER 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

12. CITIZEN COMMENT (EVERY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC WHO IS 
RECOGNIZED TO SPEAK SHALL LIMIT COMMENTS TO THREE MINUTES 
‐ CITIZENS MAY EMAIL SBROCK@BCGOV.NET OR COMMENT ON OUR 
FACEBOOK LIVE STREAM) 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Public Facilities 

Committee Meeting 

Chairman 

BRIAN FLEWELLING 
 

Vice Chairman 
YORK GLOVER 

 

Committee Members 
MICHAEL COVERT 
MARK LAWSON 

JOSEPH PASSIMENT 

 

County Administrator 

ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 
PATRICK HILL 

 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


- DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

Issues for Consideration: 

Points to Consider: 

Funding & Liability Factors: 

Council Options: 

Recommendation: 

Approval of Minutes

Public Facilities

May 18, 2020

Approval of the April 20,2020 minutes

None.

Approve, Modify or Reject

Approve



 Public Facilities Committee Minutes 
Monday , April 20, 2020 at 3:30 PM 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County  
Government Robert Smalls Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 Chairman Flewelling called the meeting to order at 4:15 PM 
 
FOIA 
Chairman Flewelling noted that Public notification of this meeting had been 
published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina 
Freedom of Information Act. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
Motion:   It was moved by Vice Chairman Glover, Seconded by Council 
Member Passiment to approve the agenda. Voting Yea: Council Member 
Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council 
Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice 
Chairman Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, 
Council Member Lawson.  The motion passed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINTUES  
 
Motion:   It was moved by Council Member Passiment, Seconded by Vice 
Chairman Glover to approve the minutes from January 21, 2020. Voting Yea: 
Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member 
Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member 
Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member 
Howard, Council Member Lawson.  The motion passed. 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 

PRESENTATION ITEMS 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
Right of Way Status Report- Patty Wilson, Beaufort County Right of Way 
Manager 
 
Discussion:  Quarterly update on 2018 Penny Referendum Projects and 
Miscellaneous Right of Way status on various roads within Beaufort County. 
 
Council Member Howard: I see it the Pathway’s project listed on the map.  I 
don’t see the project at Broad River Drive, from Ribaut Road to Parris Island 
Gateway and Depot Road.  
 
Patty Wilson: I only put that information in there because it was part of the 
referendum project.  I cannot tell you the specifics of those. I do know that 
once we get a new traffic director, there will be more information to move 
forward regarding that.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

County Council of 
Beaufort County 
Public Facilities 

Committee Meeting 

Chairman 
BRIAN FLEWELLING 

 
Vice Chairman 
YORK GLOVER 

 
Committee Members 

MICHAEL COVERT 
MARK LAWSON 

JOSEPH PASSIMENT 
 

County Administrator 
ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

 
Clerk to Council 
SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 
PATRICK HILL 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 299901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 
 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

David Wilhelm:  I can look in to that information and get back with you.  
 
Council Member Howard: I see the Depot Road but not the Broad River Road, which is a longer pathway than Depot 
Road.  
 
Council Member Passiment:  On Harrison Island Road, we were talking to the one homeowner who was willing to sign 
off as long as we had the roadway at the beginning, exactly where it was.  
 
Patty Wilson: We did meet with that homeowner and have been in communication with the church, who are the 
remaining properties in this project. We’ve encountered a drainage issue so we are having to restructure that because 
of possible drainage on the road. The two parties are willing to work with us on that.  The COVID19 social distancing is 
effecting us being able to meet with these homeowners. We are working with a design engineer to evaluate the road 
drainage coming off Pinckney Colony Road. It is actually draining onto that property and we are trying to avoid future 
actions as a result of the drainage.  
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Seeking approval of a Resolution authorizing the County Administrator to pursue condemnation of a portion of 
land to complete Right of Way ownership associated with the dirt road paving of Twickenham Road located in 
Sheldon Township- Patty Wilson, Beaufort County Right of Way Manager 
 
Discussion:  Twickenham Road, located in district 1 is a dirt road the County has maintained for over 30 years and is 
scheduled for year 2 of the 2019/2020 road paving/improvement program approved by Resolution 2019/24. After 
multiple attempts of correspondence for ROW, the County acquired 20 out of 23 requests. Due to negative responses 
for ROW necessary improvement, condemnation is needed on parcels R700 013 000 0021 0000, R700 013 000 0030 
0000, and R700 013 000 0039 0000.  Staff has followed the current process to acquire deeds for right of way. Efforts 
over a 24-month time period include a citizen petition process, field survey, researching ownership, preparing letters 
and deeds, verbal communication, and providing time for owner consideration, discussion and response.  The County 
must have a deeded 50 foot right of way before the road can be included in a dirt road paving contract and has the 3 
aforementioned properties remaining.  Condemnation expenses range from $6,000 0 $15,000 and fall under TAG funds 
2342001T.  
 
Patty Wilson: Members of this road have been trying for years to get it paved. We have had multiple communication 
with owners of this road.  One owner has 2 of the parcels and this owner is willing to grant ROW if we rocked the road 
but the community is adamant that they want this road paved. The other property owner originally signed the petition 
in favor of paving but rescinded when the document came out and wanted to be compensated.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: The one owner that wants to be compensated is the amount at value of the appraised property?  
 
Patty Wilson: To be more specific, the owner didn’t want to work with the County. Didn’t even want the compensation.  
 
Council Member Dawson: This road is problematic and costs the County a lot of money and resources and man hours 
especially during inclement weather.  The road becomes washed out.  I held a community meeting about a year ago. 
The homeowners in attendance were in favor of the easement except the three. We were hoping not to go the 
condemnation route.  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Dawson, Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to approve the Resolution 
authorizing the County Administrator to pursue the condemnation of a portion of land to complete Right of Way 
ownership associated with the dirt road paving of Twickenham Road located in Sheldon Township.  The Votes - Voting 
Yea: Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member 
Howard, Council Member Lawson The motion passed. 
 
Seeking approval of a Resolution authorizing the County Administrator to perfect Right of Way on Stroup Road 
located in Sheldon Township associated with parcel R700 038 000 051a 000.- Patty Wilson, Beaufort County Right  
of Way Manager 

Discussion:  Stroup Road was paved during contract 34 around 2008-2009-time frame. During this time County 
considered historically maintained roads as prescriptive.  County Council approved the paving contract on January 26, 
2009.  A recent development request established a need to perfect ROW on Stroup Road. Of the two needed parcels 
(04C & 051A) parcel 051A still has not voluntarily deeded the ROW. Negations to avoid condemnation have resulted in 
an agreed compensation of $3,000.  By settling this matter prior to any filing, the County saves the legal expenses of 
approximately $2,500.00 associated with the preparation of the pleadings, approximately $1,800.00 costs associated 
with the appraisal of the property and around $700.00 costs associated with the title search and filing fees. These fees 
would be in the addition to any compensation due the landowner for the value of 5,211 sf.  Compensation request 
funded via TAG funds- 2342001T. 

 

Council Member Dawson: Recused due to involvement with some property owners.  

 
Motion:   It was moved by Council Member Passiment, Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to approve the Resolution 
authorizing the County Administrator to perfect Right of Way on Stroup Road located in Sheldon Township associated 
with parcel R700 0038 000 051a 000.  The Vote - Voting Yea: Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, 
Council Member Covert, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member 
Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson.  Recused: Council Member Dawson.  The motion 
passed. 
 
Seeking approval of a Resolution authorizing the County Administrator to pursue condemnation of a portion of land 
to complete Right of Way ownership associated with the dirt road paving of David Green Road located on St. Helena 
Island. Patty Wilson, Beaufort County Right of Way Manager 
 
Discussion:  David Green Road located in district 3 is a dirt road the County has maintained for over 30 years and is 
scheduled for year 2 of the 2019/2020 paving improvement program approved by Resolution 2019/24.  After multiple 
attempts of correspondence for ROW, the County acquired 17 out of 19 requests. One of the two remaining parcels, 
parcel R300 021 000 0013 000 s interest only and does not require ROW acquisition or condemnation. Requested ROW 
for 2nd parcel, R300 021 000 0068 000 was not acquired and condemnation is needed to complete the acquisition 
process.  Staff followed the current process to acquire deeds for right of way. Initial ROW efforts began with the 
previous ROW manager in August 2014 and resumed with the current ROW Manager in November 2018. Efforts include 
field survey, researching ownership, preparing letters and deeds, verbal communication, and providing time for owner 
consideration, discussion and response. The County must have a deeded 50-foot right of way before the road can be 
included in a dirt road paving contract and has the aforementioned property remaining. Condemnation expenses range 
from $6,000- $15,000 and fall under TAG funds- 2342001T 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Vice Chairman Glover, Seconded by Council Member Howard to approve the Resolution 
authorizing the County Administrator to pursue condemnation of a portion of land to complete Right of Way ownership 
associated with the dirt road paving of David Green Road located on St. Helena Island.  The Votes - Voting Yea: Council 
Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman 
Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, 
Council Member Lawson.  The motion passed. 
 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Seeking approval of an Amended and Restated Stormwater Management Agreement and Utility Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) between Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort. – Neil Desai, Public Works Director 
 
Discussion: This amended IGA was requested by the City, as they are proposing to do a bond issue and part of the 
process for a bond requires an agreement with funding sources (billing and collections for the life of the bond). The 
Stormwater Management Utility (SWMU) Board approved the recommendation to extend it out 25 years without any 
significant changes to the intent the agreement during the 10/10/2018 meeting. The IGA draft was provided to the 
SWMU Board in the 2/21/20 packet and during the meeting were informed that there were no significant changes 
from the previous IGA and that the term is for a period of twenty years. No concerns were expressed about the draft 
of the Amended and Restated IGA with the City of Beaufort.  
 
Neil Desai: This was a proposal to change the language and to allow the City a little more flexibility to use Stormwater 
utility funds in regards to any municipality bond that they may seek for a drainage project. This mainly due to the Mossy 
Oaks draining project and can apply to any future project that may be funded through a municipal bond.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: So we are authorizing them to use future revenue sources to bond or hold money for projects? 
 
Neil Desai: It allows the bonding of projects for Stormwater Utility for any type of Stormwater projects. Currently right 
now they are limited to utility funds. IGA gives them a little bit more flexibility to used different funding sources in 
particular municipal bonds.  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Passiment to approve the Amended 
and Restated Stormwater Management and Utility Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Beaufort County and 
the City of Beaufort.  The Votes - Voting Yea: Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council 
Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, 
Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson.  The motion passed. 
 
Seeking approval to award J.H. Hiers’ Construction, LLC the Design/Build Construction for Dirt Road Paving Contract 
#51A RFP #112219E totaling $2,305,778.00 with funding for the project coming from TAG Funds. – David Thomas, 
Purchasing Director 
 
Discussion: Resolution 2019/24 adopted in June 2019 established a prioritized 5-year Dirt Road paving program. 
Beaufort County advertised for design build services for Dirt Road Paving Contract #51A, year one of the program: Rice 
Road (District 1 Sheldon) Broad River Blvd to Inwood Plantation, Salicornia Drive (District 2 Burton) Marsh Hawk to 
Terminus, Wards Landing Road (District 3 Lady’s Island) Sea Island Parkway to Worthington Road, George William Lane 
(District 3 St Helena) William Campbell Lane to Kelly Road.  The two highest rated companies were invited to interview; 
preferred Materials Inc. Earning 379 points and J.H. Hiers’ Construction earing 376 points. Staff requested Preferred 
Materials Inc. as the highest evaluated bidder to review their original fee of $2,495,400.00 as it exceeded the engineer’s 
estimate of $2,196,928.00 Preferred Materials Inc. proposed a revised fee of $2,284,100.00 which still exceeded the 
estimate. Due to this staff reviewed the fee proposal from J.H. Hiers’ Construction, LLC. There fee is within the budget 
at $2,096,162.00. J.H. Hiers’ fee proposal has a 10% contingency of $209,616, the total project cost is $2,305,778. The 
funding for the project is TAG Funds with an available balance of $5,107,619.62. 
 
Councilman Flewelling: The original estimate on 51A was $1.9M was it because the original estimate was done 4-5 
years ago? 
 
David Thomas: I would have to consult with someone in Engineering.  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Passiment, Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to approve to award J.H. 
Hiers’ Construction, LLC the Design/Build Construction for Dirt Road Paving Contract #51A RFP#1122195E totaling 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

$2,305,778.00 with funding for the project coming from TAG Funds.  The Votes - Voting Yea: Council Member 
Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, 
Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council 
Member Lawson.  The motion passed. 
 
Seeking approval of the Implementation of Decal System and Convenience Center Operational Changes. Dave 
Wilhelm, Assistant County Administrator for Public Works and Sustainability.  
  
Discussion: Implement a County decal system for Convenience Center access; close two Convenience Centers- Gate 
and Pritchardville; reduce operating day to two (one weekday and one weekend day) for Big Estates, Sheldon, Cuffy, 
Coffin Point, and Lobeco; reduce operating hours at all centers to 7:30 AM to 6:00 OM (current hours are 7:30 AM – 
7:00 PM) Implementation of a decal system and changing the operating hours were approved by Solid Waste and 
Recycling Board on April 2, 2020. The Abby Goldsmith report (November 2019) was presented, as information, to Public 
Facilities on January 21, 2020. Staff reviewed all of the recommendations from the Goldsmith report and determined 
changes most critical to immediately benefit Beaufort County Convenience Center operations. Hauling, disposal and 
operations are funded through the General Fund (10001340 for SW&R). Implementation of the decal system will 
reduce operational costs by eliminating misuse of the centers by business, contractors, and out of County users.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: How often are residents going to be able to use the convenience centers?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: Twice a week. The reason for that is because there are contractors from Beaufort County and they will 
be receiving decals and if we don’t limit the number of times of uses to the center per week there wouldn’t be a way 
to control the contractors coming over and over again.  
 
Council Member Dawson: When you talk about limiting access to the center is that all centers or just the ones 
mentioned in our packet?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: All centers in the County. You can go to any center in the County so it will be limited to twice a week no 
matter what center you go to.  
 
Council Member Dawson: How will citizens receive their decals?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We are still working on those details and we will bring those recommendations to Council. These decals 
will be available to any Beaufort County resident that requests one.  
 
Council Member Howard: Can someone work the system by going to one center this week and one center the next 
week, and so on? 
 
Dave Wilhelm: We have thought about that and those details we need to work on. It will probably be a swipe card 
system. As they come in they will be greeted by an attendant who will swipe their card. They will get a red light or a 
green light and it will be county wide.  
 
Council Member Howard: What about drop offs at Shanklin, does that count as a visit?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: Yes, for the decal system it will.  
 
Council Member Covert: Have you given any consideration to a traditional decal that is fixed instead of a card reader?  
 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Dave Wilhelm: We did consider that. We just don’t know of a system to read that on a vehicle and limit the number of 
visits. We may be able to get some sort of scanning system that will scan a car sticker. If we could do it that would be 
fine.  
 
Council Member Covert: The reason to limit is to obviously ward off contractors. There will be mass hysteria that we 
are limiting visits and only allowing two visits per week. Do you think maybe we could see what the numbers are with 
the decal system and not limit them right off the bat?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: That is something we can continue to talk about. I feel if we implement the decals, give them out free 
we probably won’t see a significant decrease. We can certainly try this as a first phase and see what the results are and 
start placing restrictions.  
 
Council Member Covert: It would take your attendants to actually monitor who is coming in?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We can look at this first phase and back off what we are requiring for the first phase.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: I think it would be valuable to track individual users so that we can find out about the people 
abusing the system and find out if they are contractors and then approach them and tell them how to do it.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: As part of the Goldsmith report, she looked at six other counties with the software we are looking at 
and with the software we will have the ability to track everybody individually and do a search on the number of visits 
and the see the number of people coming in more frequently and what is normal for household trash.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: When you approach that time, when you want to start limiting the number of trips per week, we 
could find a happy medium and then survey the ones above that and see what their pattern is and help accommodate 
them.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: What we are trying to do is mirror what has worked for other counties. Typically, if you have curbside 
collection it is picked up once a week so we figured twice a week was enough. We can certainly move forward with a 
decal system and not put limitations on it and track it and make some changes once we get enough data.  
 
Council Member Passiment: It really isn’t a decal system because there isn’t a decal but a card. You are going to have 
a card and a card reader? 
 
Dave Wilhelm: It could be a decal or it could just be a card that you physically hold or a hanger.  We are working out 
the details but the terminology is decal.  
 
Council Member Passiment: In order for us to implement this, some decisions have to be made. Before we roll this out 
we have to educate the population. Do you have a time line for this?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We have a projected time line of 3-4 months to get most of this done. This is an optimistic time frame. 
Assuming we get a positive response and move forward with this after today’s meeting we can start working on this 
tomorrow morning and work through these details.  
 
Council Member Passiment: I think this is a great idea but it is going to have an impact where I live because of one of 
the centers you want to close. The more information I can give to residents here that use that center the better off we 
are going to be.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: There are other recommended changes along with this and I don’t want to get hung up on just the 
decal. Closing centers was one of the recommendations on the Goldsmith report. Gate and Pritchardville. We are not 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

going to close them immediately. Our time line for this is around the same time of implementing the decal system. 
These two sites have safety issues. We cannot expand on these sites. Report also recommends closing 4 other smaller 
sites. Two in district 1 and two in district 3.  We had a public meeting in district one and we came to a compromise, 
these smaller centers are open four days a week and we proposed opening two days a week, 1-week day and 1 
weekend day.  
 
Council Member Covert: Regarding Gate and Pritchardville. If we implement the decal system and see that the cost to 
operate has dropped is it possible to leave those sites open?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We did consider it. Pritchardville is getting a lot of use from increased population in that area and out 
of county dumping. I don’t see it having a decrease in traffic just because of the growth in population. But we can 
change the recommendation and see the data by implementing the decal.  
 
Council Member Covert: Is Simmonsville going to be able to handle the current traffic plus the additional traffic from 
closing Pritchardville?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We will work as quickly as possible to develop the best decal system and come back with a final 
recommendation. Implement system and collect data to review next phase.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: Do you want to motion approval of implementation of decal system without the closures of the 
convenience centers at Pritchardville and Gate, Council Member Covert?  
 
Council Member Cover: Yes. 
 
Chairman Flewelling: if we are able to limit traffic it may be a safer place, especially Gate.  
 
Council Member Howard: I would like to speak about Gate. I think keeping it open is an extreme expense. There are 
stormwater issues and I don’t see it being viable even with the decal system and limited traffic.  
 
Council Member Sommerville: How much of an issue was safety at Gate and Pritchardville.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: It was an issue because of the traffic. The average is 500 a day and that is more at peak hours. It can’t 
handle that volume of traffic. Maybe the decal system will decrease the volume but capital improvements is still an 
issue. We have 11 centers and 10 of them don’t meet the stormwater requirements. We can hold off making those 
capital improvements and stormwater improvements until we implement the decal system and get some data and see 
where to go from there.  
 
Council Member Passiment: I think putting a decal system at Pritchardville is more of a safety hazard that leaving it as 
is. That is a difficult place to get in and out of. We would have to close that one.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: The footprint for Gate and Pritchardville are the same. That footprint also matches Coffin Point, Big 
Estate, Sheldon. It is going to be extremely problematic, a lot of operational challenges. We are hoping to implement 
a system that will be easy to use.  
 
Council Member Dawson: One of the centers in my district is open six days a week and I that maybe we should reduce 
it to three days a week instead of two and let us see how that works.  
 
Dave Wilhelm: Two weekend days and one-week day or 2 week days and 1 weekend day?  
 
Council Member Dawson: I like the two days a week and one weekend day.  



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Dave Wilhelm: The landfill is closed on Sundays. Having the smaller convenience centers open maybe Tuesday, 
Thursday and Saturday.  
 
Council Member Dawson: I don’t have a problem with that and the hours being 7:00 am to 6:30 PM. 
 
Vice Chairman Glover: Me either.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: Are we approving the implementation of the decal system, holding off on closing Gate and 
Pritchardville, changing hours from 7:00 am to 6:30 pm at the District 1 and District 3 sites and then change the 
openings to 3 days a week instead of 2 days a week.  Motion by Council Member Covert.  Seconded by Vice Chairman 
Glover? Do we go to County Council from here or do we wait until we implement the decal?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: I think all we are doing is moving forward with the creation of the decal system. The implementation 
won’t start until we come back to you. So I don’t think we need to go to Council right now.  
 
Council Member Covert: We have a question from a Hilton Head resident wanting to know if their trash center is 
included?  
 
Dave Wilhelm: We are still working on some details there. That is the center that is going to realize the most savings 
or the most positive changes with the decal system. We are going to wait and get some data before making any 
recommendations.  
 
Council Member Rodman: I think we need to handle the decals and the operation as two separate things. I think this 
will be of such interest to the public that we would need approval and council or public hearing.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: It seems before we implement the decal it will be going to Council. This motion is simply to give 
administration authority to processed with the development of the decal system process.  
 
Council Member Passiment: We also need to know a price to implement the decal.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: So Council Member Passiment is suggesting to bifurcate the question and make them two 
separate.  
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, Seconded by Council Member Rodman to bifurcate the 
recommendation to two separate questions: 1- Implementation of the decal system and 2 changing the convenience 
center hours and waiting on closing Gate and Pritchardville centers. The Votes: Yea: Council Member Lawson, Council 
Member Sommerville, Council Member Howard, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Passiment, Chairman 
Flewelling. Nay: Council Member Dawson and Vice Chairman Glover. The motion passed 
 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to approve the implementation 
of the decal system. The Votes: Yea: Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member 
Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council 
Member Howard, Council Member Lawson. The motion passed.  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Covert, Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to change the convenience 
center hours and wait on closing Gate and Pritchardville centers. The Vote: Yea: Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member 
Dawson, Council Member Covert, Council Member Howard, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Lawson, 
Chairman Flewelling. Nay: Council Member Passiment. The motion passed.  
 
Council Member Dawson: You didn’t include changing the five small convenience centers from 2 days to 3 days. 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Chairman Flewelling: That is included.  
 
Seeking approval of an Ordinance to establish a Solid Waste and Recycling Enterprise Fund- Dave Wilhelm, Assistant 
County Administrator for Public Works and Sustainability.  
 
Discussion: Restructure SW&R from the current General fund (ad valorem taxes) to an Enterprise Fund, fee based 
system. This will require Committee approval and Council approval for a new Ordinance. The Solid Waste and Recycling 
budget would be the same whether it is part of the General Fund or as a separate fee. The fee would be assessed to all 
Beaufort County property owners. Creating the Enterprise Fund was approved by Solid Waste and Recycling Board on 
April 2, 2020. Establishing the enterprise fund and associated fee would remove the obligation of the solid waste and 
recycling budget (FY21 $9,327,073.00) from the General Fund. Establishing the solid waste and recycling enterprise 
fund would result in no net change in cost to Beaufort County taxpayers.  
 
Chris Inglese: There are two main changes. One the language is clarified to be applicable county wide and two we aren’t 
clear what the fee would be so we shrunk that information and focus on residential and have a consultant develop a 
fee schedule.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: By the third and final reading we will have a final reading and we will see how it will affect budget 
and residents.  
 
Council Member Howard: Regarding the mention of a uniformed solid waste fee shall not be imposed on such a 
municipality. How does that affect municipalities? 
 
Chris Inglese: It provides an opt out for municipalities and will be more clear in a separate fee schedule. But an opt out 
for municipalities who have contracted from services including landfill cost, house hold recycling waste and doesn’t 
cause a burden on the county system.  
 
Council Member Howard: If the City of Beaufort or the Town of Port Royal demonstrate that they have a contract for 
recycling that goes beyond county recycling, that will be taken into account? 
 
Chris Inglese: If they have to put the whole program together and it demonstrates no additional burden our landfill or 
if they contract with a vendor and the fees for the landfill is built in to the contract then they can opt out.  
 
Council Member Howard: Could it be a graduated fee, such as if they don’t want to handle household hazardous waste 
and electronic waste?  
 
Chris Inglese: Through an IGA we maybe could handle some of those details.  
 
Council Member Passiment: At the top of page 3- To establish necessary procedures, policies and guidelines for the 
use of the County’s recycling facilities. Do we know how long this will take to develop those procedures, policies and 
guidelines?  
 
Chris Inglese: We have ordinances in place, I’m not familiar with any policy documents but based on our ordinances 
and practices it wouldn’t take long to put something like that together.  
 
Council Member Passiment: On page 4 it talks about the establishment and construction and operation of solid waste 
collection sites and other facilities for the use and benefits of the residents. Does this include transfer stations?  
 
Chris Inglese: I think if we determine that is what we want to do, that is the way it would be covered.  Specifically, this 
ordinance doesn’t paint us in a corner, we specifically wanted to make sure we could make changes.  



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment and Seconded by Vice Chairman Glover to seek approval of an 
Ordinance to establish a Solid Waste and Recycling Enterprise Fund. The Votes: Yea: Council Member Passiment, 
Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council 
Member Rodman, Vice Chairman Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson. The motion passed.  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

Discussion of Update on Horse Island Drainage Problems- Dave Wilhelm, Assistant County Director, Public Works 
and Sustainability 
 
Discussion: Our staff has determined that the drainage issue on the roadside ditches is caused by differences in the 
driveway pipe elevation. We put in a proposed FY21 $21K to hire an outside surveyor to shoot the whole drainage 
system and provide that data to us and then our stormwater crew will make the repairs next fiscal year hopefully late 
summer.  
 
Continuation of Discussion of Federal Courthouse Lease and Options- David Thomas, Purchasing Director 
 
Discussion:  RFP was sent out in February or March and due May 14, 2020 for proposals for someone to purchase it, 
lease it or lease to own it. At this time, we have one proposal and it looks like it’s going to be a lease.  
 
Chairman Flewelling: I think the timing of this, we will have to have votes of the County Council. One in May and two 
in June. Our current lease extends month to month?  
 
David Thomas: It can be extended month to month if both parties agree.  
 
Council Member Rodman: The original contract had a right to purchase in there and it was removed and replaced 
with an extension.  
 
David Thomas: You may be correct.  
 
Council Member Rodman:  Ashley suggested a short term lease agreement may work, are we only looking for a long 
term lease?  
 
David Thomas: I think it is an open option for the public to offer a short term or long term lease. 
 
Chairman Flewelling: I think we need to do something moderately quick. We need a motion to extend the current 
lease to the lease until we can get our stuff together.  
 
(No motion was made) 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSION 
 

Appointment of Kamal Wigfall to the Keep Beaufort County Beautiful Board. 
 
Motion: The motion was made by Vice Chairman Glover, Seconded by Council Member Passiment to appoint Kamal 
Wigfall to the Keep Beaufort County Beautiful Board. The Votes: Yea: Council Member Passiment, Council Member 
Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Dawson, Chairman Flewelling, Council Member Rodman, Vice 
Chairman Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson. The motion passed.  
 



Public Facilities Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
Facebook Comments:  Mrs. Eady: What about Coffin Point’s drainage problem?   
 
Chairman Flewelling: Drainage issues, hopefully you meant the Coffin Point Convenience Center and we will look into 
that.  
 
Facebook Comments: Mrs. Eady: Are you going to collect acceding to decals?  
 
Chairman Flewelling: The decal system we are trying to develop a system for Beaufort County for the residents.  
 
  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  5:45 PM  

 

 

Ratified by Committee:  
 



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

  



- DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

Issues for Consideration: 

Points to Consider: 

Funding & Liability Factors: 

Council Options: 

Recommendation: 

Recommendation of Award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc. for IFB #041420E Ft. Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements

Public Facilities Committee

May 18, 2020

David L. Thomas, Purchasing Director

On March 9, 2020, Beaufort County published a solicitation for construction services for the roadway improvements at Fort Fremont Preserve. The work will consist of roadway repairs, pervious
parking spaces, and landscaping to the entrance of Fort Fremont and the newly constructed Interpretive Center.

An Engineer’s estimate was prepared by Cranston Engineering:

Total Estimated Project Cost: $255,200.24
15% Contingency: $ 38,280.04
Total Estimated Project Cost w/ Contingency: $293,480.28

On April 14, 2020, Beaufort County received six (6) bids:
Grand Total Price

1. MAJ Enterprises, Inc. ….………………………………………. $162,173.00
2. Cleland Site Prep ……………………………………………….. $259,025.00
3. APAC Atlantic Inc. ……………………………………………... $262,295.00
4. Eurovia Atlantic Coast, LLC DBA Blythe ............................... $280,955.50
5. JH Hiers ………………………………………………………… $282,487.30
6. EnviroSmart…………………………………………………….. $294,426.00

Staff conducted an on-site scope of work review with MAJ Enterprises, Inc. to confirm all work was included in their bid price. MAJ Enterprises, Inc. will self-perform 100% of the work. They have a bond capacity of 1 million and has been in
business in Beaufort County for 47 years. For these reasons, staff is confident that MAJ Enterprises can complete the work in accordance with construction documents.

MAJ Enterprises, Inc. provided a bid of $162,173. With a 10% contingency of $16,217, the total project
cost is $178,390. The funding for the project is paid through the Rural & Critical Lands Passive Parks
Program account number 45020011-54405.

Approve Recommendation of Award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc or;
Disapprove Recommendation of Award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc.

Public Facilities Committee approve, and recommend County Council approve the contract award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc. for IFB#041420E
Fort Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements for the amount of $162,173 with a 10% contingency of $16,217 totaling $178,390.



David L Thomas, Purchasing Director
dthomas@bcgov.net 843.255.2353

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

106 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. 2, Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228

TO: Councilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Public Facilities CommitteeCouncilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Public Facilities Committee

FROM: David L Thomas. CPPO. Purchasing Director

SUBJ: New Contract as a Result of SolicitationNew Contract as a Result of Solicitation

DATE:

BACKGROUND:

VENDOR INFORMATION: COST:

Insert Addition Vendor Info.

FUNDING:

Funding approved: YesYes  By:  Date: 
FOR ACTION:

RECOMMENDATION:

Attachment: 

FtFremont.pdf 
988.18 KB Click here to attach a file

 cc: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator Approved: YesYes    Date: 

Check to override approval: Overridden by: Override Date: 

   Raymond Williams, Finance Director Approved: YesYes    Date: 

Recommendation of Award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc.
Fort Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements, IFB 041420E

05/18/2020

On March 9, 2020, Beaufort County published a solicitation for construction services for the roadway improvements at Fort Fremont 
Preserve. The work will consist of roadway repairs, pervious parking spaces, and landscaping to the entrance of Fort Fremont and the 
newly constructed Interpretive Center.

An Engineer’s estimate was prepared by Cranston Engineering:

Total Estimated Project Cost:      $255,200.24
15% Contingency:   38,280.04
Total Estimated Project Cost w/ Contingency: $293,480.28

BIDDER INFORMATION On April 14, 2020, Beaufort County received six (6) bids: 

  Grand Total Price
1. MAJ Enterprises, Inc.    $162,173.00
2. Cleland Site Prep     $259,025.00
3. APAC Atlantic Inc.   $262,295.00
4. Eurovia Atlantic Coast, LLC DBA Blythe   $280,955.50
5. JH Hiers    $282,487.30
6. EnviroSmart    $294,426.00

Staff conducted an on-site scope of work review with MAJ Enterprises, Inc. to confirm all work was included in their bid price. MAJ 
Enterprises, Inc. will self-perform 100% of the work. They have a bond capacity of 1 million and has been in business in Beaufort County 
for 47 years. For these reasons, staff is confident that MAJ Enterprises can complete the work in accordance with construction 
documents.

MAJ Enterprises, Inc.
$162,173 (Bid) + $16,217 (10% Contingency) = $178,390

$178,390

MAJ Enterprises, Inc. provided a bid of $162,173. With a 10% contingency of $16,217, the total project cost is 
$178,390. The funding for the project will be paid through the Rural & Critical Lands Passive Parks Program,  account 
number 45020011-54405. 

raymond.williams 05/07/2020

Public Facilities Committee Meeting May 18, 2020.

Public Facilities Committee approve, and recommend County Council approve, the contract award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc., for the 
roadway improvements at the Fort Fremont Preserve in the amount of $178,390.  Budget Amendment to be processed for passive parks.

05/07/2020

05/07/2020

Page 1 of 2New Memos - 2020-00130

5/11/2020http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/FormServer.aspx?XmlLocation=/PU...



Andrea Atherton, Director, Engineering Department    Approved: YesYes    Date:   
Check to override approval:  Overridden by: Override Date: ready for admin: 

CC others

Approved by Committee:

Approved by Council:

After Initial Submission, Use the Save and Close Buttons

05/07/2020

Page 2 of 2New Memos - 2020-00130

5/11/2020http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/FormServer.aspx?XmlLocation=/PU...



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

2266 Boundary Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
Post Office Drawer 1228, Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228 

Telephone: 843-255-2700 Facsimile: 843-255-9420 
Website: www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

TO: Chairman Brian Flewelling, Public Facilities Committee 

FROM: David L. Thomas, Purchasing Director 

SUBJ: Recommendation of Award to MAJ Enterprises, Inc.  
Fort Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements, IFB #041420E 

DATE: April 30, 2020 

BACKGROUND On March 9, 2020, Beaufort County published a solicitation for construction services for the roadway 
improvements at Fort Fremont Preserve. The work will consist of roadway repairs, pervious parking spaces, and landscaping to the 
entrance of Fort Fremont and the newly constructed Interpretive Center. 

An Engineer’s estimate was prepared by Cranston Engineering: 

Total Estimated Project Cost:         $255,200.24 
15% Contingency:        $  38,280.04 
Total Estimated Project Cost w/ Contingency:      $293,480.28 

BIDDER INFORMATION On April 14, 2020, Beaufort County received six (6) bids: 

           Grand Total Price 
1. MAJ Enterprises, Inc. ….………………………………………...…. $162,173.00 
2. Cleland Site Prep …………………………………………………… $259,025.00 
3. APAC Atlantic Inc. …………………………………………………. $262,295.00 
4. Eurovia Atlantic Coast, LLC DBA Blythe ........................................  $280,955.50 
5. JH Hiers …………………………………………………………….. $282,487.30 
6. EnviroSmart………………………………………………………..... $294,426.00

Staff conducted an on-site scope of work review with MAJ Enterprises, Inc. to confirm all work was included in their bid price. 
MAJ Enterprises, Inc. will self-perform 100% of the work. They have a bond capacity of 1 million and has been in business in 
Beaufort County for 47 years. For these reasons, staff is confident that MAJ Enterprises can complete the work in accordance with 
construction documents. 

FUNDING MAJ Enterprises, Inc. provided a bid of $162,173. With a 10% contingency of $16,217, the total project cost is 
$178,390. The funding for the project is paid through the Rural & Critical Lands Passive Parks Program account number 
45020011-54405.  

FOR ACTION Public Facilities Committee Meeting May 18, 2020. 

RECOMMENDATION  Public Facilities Committee approve, and recommend County Council approve the contract award to 
MAJ Enterprises, Inc. for IFB#041420E Fort Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements for the amount of $162,173 with a 
10% contingency of $16,217 totaling $178,390. 

cc:      Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator 
  Hayes Williams, Director of Finance 

Attachments: 1. Cranston’s Engineer’s Estimate 
2. Bid Tabulation
3. MAJ Enterprises, Inc. Schedule of Prices



PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

B
ID

 T
AB

U
LA

TI
O

N
PU

R
C

H
AS

IN
G

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

4/
15

/2
02

0

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

Fo
rt 

Fr
em

on
t P

re
se

rv
e 

R
oa

dw
ay

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
IF

B 
04

14
20

E
Pr

oj
ec

t B
ud

ge
t:

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

 D
at

e:
9-

Ju
l-1

9
Ti

m
e:

3:
00

Lo
ca

tio
n:

B
id

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
:

D
av

e 
Th

om
as

B
id

 R
ec

or
de

r:
Vi

ct
or

ia
 M

oy
er

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
bi

ds
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r t

he
 a

bo
ve

 re
fe

re
nc

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
:

BI
DD

ER
 

BI
D 

   
FO

RM
BI

D 
  

B
O

N
D

AL
L 

AD
DE

ND
A

SC
H

 O
F 

Pr
ic

es
SU

B 
LI

ST
IN

G
SM

BE
 D

O
C

S
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
 P

ric
e 

M
AJ

 E
nt

er
pr

ise
s I

nc
.

X
X

X
X

X
16

2,
17

3.
00

$

Cl
el

an
d 

Si
te

 P
re

p
X

X
X

X
X

X
25

9,
02

5.
00

$
   

   
   

   

AP
AC

 A
tla

nt
ic 

In
c.

X
X

X
X

X
X

26
2,

29
5.

00
$

   
   

   
   

Eu
ro

vi
a 

At
la

nt
ic 

Co
as

t L
LC

 D
BA

 B
ly

th
e

X
X

X
X

X
X

28
0,

95
5.

50
$

   
   

   
   

JH
 H

ie
rs

X
X

X
X

X
X

28
2,

48
7.

30
$

   
   

   
   

En
vi

ro
Sm

ar
t

X
X

X
X

X
29

4,
42

6.
00

$
   

   
   

   

Vi
ct

or
ia

 M
oy

er
Bi

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

to
r S

ig
na

tu
re

Bi
d 

R
ec

or
de

r

Be
au

fo
rt

 C
ou

nt
y 

po
st

s 
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
bi

d 
ta

bu
la

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 2

 b
us

in
es

s 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
 b

id
 o

pe
ni

ng
.  

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
bi

d 
ta

bu
la

tio
n 

is
 

po
st

ed
 a

s 
it 

w
as

 re
ad

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

bi
d 

op
en

in
g.

  B
ea

uf
or

t C
ou

nt
y 

m
ak

es
 n

o 
gu

ar
an

te
es

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
ta

bu
la

tio
n.

  T
he

 b
id

 
re

su
lts

 in
di

ca
te

d 
he

re
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 fi
na

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
Be

au
fo

rt
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
. A

fte
r t

he
 re

vi
ew

, t
he

 fi
na

l a
w

ar
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
by

 B
ea

uf
or

t C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l a

nd
 a

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
bi

d 
ta

b 
w

ill
 b

e 
po

st
ed

 o
nl

in
e.

 



























- DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

Issues for Consideration: 

Points to Consider: 

Funding & Liability Factors: 

Council Options: 

Recommendation: 

Request authority for the County Administrator to negotiate a contract award for RFQ 071019 Facilities Master Plan Consulting Services

Public Facilities Committee

May 18, 2020

Dave Thomas, CPPO Purchasing Director

On July 10, 2019, the Purchasing Department received four responses to the above RFQ 071019. See the attached memo. The
evaluation committee reviewed all of the responses and interviewed each firm. After the interviews the evaluation committee
selected Creech & Associates as the number one ranked firm. The fee of $298,840 covers the Master Plan Services, which
includes a Space Needs Analysis, and Facilities Master Planning. See the proposal attachments A-C from Creech & Associates
for a list of buildings and departments included in the Space Needs Analysis, and Facilities Master Planning parts of the study.

1. The assessment is needed in order to create a strategic forecast & necessary information for meeting these requirements over a five-year through
thirty-year period, with appropriate intervals for re-evaluation to ensure vitality & useful life of the tool.
2. The results from the study should provide a plan to the County with a long-term vision and time-phased plan to methodically:
a. Dispose of deficient or leased facilities, b. Strategically develop replacement facilities that are right-sized and located to consolidate operations whenever
feasible. c. To develop new facilities where needed to accommodate forecasted County population growth increases over the long-term (30 years).
3. The process is estimated to encompass six (6) months and is scheduled to commence as soon as the project is approved by County Council. Estimated
start date is June 2020. The start date may change due to the current COVID-19 situation.

Account 10001311-51160 Professional Services. Facilities Management as 1.6 million available in their
current budget. Since this is a six month project, funds may be needed for FY21. Cost break down for each
phase: Space Needs Analysis $131,729, Facilities Master Planning $167,111 for a total of $298,840.

Approve or disapprove the Request.

The Purchasing Department recommends that the Public Facilities Committee recommend approval to County Council to allowing the County
Administrator to negotiate a contract award with Creech & Associates for the Master Plan Services as referenced in the RFQ 071019 for a contract
cost of $298,840.



David L Thomas, Purchasing Director
dthomas@bcgov.net 843.255.2353

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

106 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. 2, Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228

TO: Councilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Public Facilities CommitteeCouncilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Public Facilities Committee

FROM: David L Thomas. CPPO. Purchasing Director

SUBJ: New Contract as a Result of SolicitationNew Contract as a Result of Solicitation

DATE:

BACKGROUND:

VENDOR INFORMATION: COST:

Insert Addition Vendor Info.

FUNDING:

Funding approved: YesYes  By:  Date: 
FOR ACTION:

RECOMMENDATION:

Attachment: 

Master Plan.pdf 
2.26 MB Click here to attach a file

 cc: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator Approved: YesYes    Date: 

                 Check to override approval: Overridden by: Override Date: 

      Raymond Williams, Finance Director Approved: YesYes    Date: 

Request Authority for the County Administrator to Negotiate a Contract Award for RFQ 071019, Facilities Master Plan 
Consulting Services

05/18/2020

Beaufort County received four responses from a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on July 10, 2019.  The RFQ was advertised in order to 
select a qualified firm to provide Master Plan Consulting Services.  An assessment is needed in order to create a strategic forecast and 
necessary information for meeting our future facilities needs as outlined in the scope of work requirements in the RFQ.  The study will 
consist of a two part study including a space needs analysis and facilities master plan options for the identified buildings and 
departments within Beaufort County (see the attached proposal).  This process will provide a working tool over a five-year through thirty-
year period, with appropriate intervals for re-evaluation to ensure vitality & useful life. The results from the study should provide a plan 
to the County with a long-term vision and time-phased plan to methodically do the following: a) Dispose of deficient or leased facilities, 
b) Strategically develop replacement facilities that are right-sized and located to consolidate operations whenever feasible, c) To develop 
new facilities where needed to accommodate forecasted County population growth increases over the long-term (30 years). The process 
is estimated to encompass six (6) months and is scheduled to commence as soon the budget and project is approved by Council.

A selection committee consisting of the County Administrator (Ashley Jacobs), Deputy County Administrator ( Chris Inglese), Assistant 
County Administrator for Civic Engagement & Outreach (Monica Spells), Assistant County Administrator for Public Safety (Phil Foot), 
Assistant County Administrator for Finance, (Alicia Holland), Assistant County Administrator Public Works & Sustainability ( David 
Wilhelm), Division Director Construction, Engineering and Facilities (Rob McFee), Director of Facilities (Mark Roseneau),  reviewed and 
ranked the proposals based on the criteria provided in the solicitation. All four firms were selected for interviews. After the interviews, 
the selection committee completed their evaluation and selected Creech & Associates as the most qualified to provide the 
aforementioned services for Beaufort County. A Best and Final Offer was received from Creech & Associates on May 5, 2020, for 
$298,840 (see the attached proposal for a list of task , price break down, and schedule).

RESPONSES AND FINAL RANKING:

1. Creech & Associates, Charlotte, NC
2. Beaufort Design Build, LLC, Seabrook, SC
3. Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc., North Charleston, SC
4. Glick & Boehm Architecture, Charleston, SC 

Creech & Associates, Charlotte, NC $298,840

Public Services has funding available in their FY20 budget for these services. The budgets will need to be identified by 
the CFO before proceeding with the project.

raymond.williams 05/11/2020

Public Facilities Committee meeting on May 18, 2020.

The Purchasing Department recommends that the Public Facilities Committee recommend approval to County Council allowing the 
County Administrator to negotiate a contract award with Creech & Associates for the Master Plan Services as referenced in the RFQ 
071019 for a contract cost of $298,840.

05/11/2020

05/11/2020

Page 1 of 2New Memos - 2020-00131

5/11/2020http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/FormServer.aspx?xmllocation=http://...



Christopher S. Inglese Deputy County Administrator      Approved: YesYes    Date:   
Check to override approval:  Overridden by: Override Date: ready for admin: 

Mark Roseneau, Director, Facility Management Departm      Approved: YesYes    Date:   
Check to override approval:  Overridden by: Override Date: ready for admin: 

CC others

Approved by Committee:

Approved by Council:

After Initial Submission, Use the Save and Close Buttons

05/11/2020

05/11/2020

Page 2 of 2New Memos - 2020-00131

5/11/2020http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/FormServer.aspx?xmllocation=http://...



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228  BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 
TELEPHONE: (843) 255-2304   FAX: (843) 255-9437 

 
 

TO:  Councilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Public Facilities Committee 
 
FROM:  David L. Thomas, CPPO, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJ:  Request authority for the County Administrator to negotiate a contract award for RFQ 071019 Facilities 

Master Plan Consulting Services 
 
DATE:  May, 11, 2020 
 
BACKGROUND:  Beaufort County received four responses from a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on July 10, 2019.  The RFQ was 
advertised in order to select a qualified firm to provide Master Plan Consulting Services.  An assessment is needed in order to create a 
strategic forecast & necessary information for meeting our future facilities needs as outlined in the scope of work requirements in the 
RFQ.  The study will consist of a two part study including a space needs analysis, and facilities master plan options for the identified 
buildings and departments within Beaufort County (see the attached proposal).  This process will provide a working tool over a five-
year through thirty-year period, with appropriate intervals for re-evaluation to ensure vitality & useful life. The results from the study 
should provide a plan to the County with a long-term vision and time-phased plan to methodically do the following: a. Dispose of 
deficient or leased facilities, b. Strategically develop replacement facilities that are right-sized and located to consolidate operations 
whenever feasible. c. To develop new facilities where needed to accommodate forecasted County population growth increases over the 
long-term (30 years). The process is estimated to encompass six (6) months and is scheduled to commence as soon the budget and 
project is approved by Council. 
 
A selection committee consisting of the County Administrator (Ashley Jacobs), Deputy County Administrator ( Chris Inglese), Assistant 
County Administrator for Civic Engagement & Outreach (Monica Spells), Assistant County Administrator for Public Safety (Phil Foot), 
Assistant County Administrator for Finance, (Alicia Holland), Assistant County Administrator Public Works & Sustainability ( David 
Wilhelm), Division Director Construction, Engineering and Facilities (Rob McFee), Director of Facilities (Mark Roseneau),  reviewed and 
ranked the proposals based on the criteria provided in the solicitation. All four firms were selected for interviews. After the interviews, the 
selection committee completed their evaluation and selected Creech & Associates as the most qualified to provide the aforementioned 
services for Beaufort County. A Best and Final Offer was received from Creech & Associates on May 5, 2020 for $298,840 (see the attached 
proposal for a list of task , price break down, and schedule. 
 
RESPONSES AND FINAL RANKING:   
 
1. Creech & Associates, Charlotte, NC   
2. Beaufort Design Build, LLC, Seabrook, SC 
3. Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc., North Charleston, SC 
4. Glick & Boehm Architecture, Charleston, SC     
 
FUNDING.  Account 10001311-51160-Professional Services. Public services has 1.6 million available in their FY20 budget for these 
services. 
 
FOR ACTION: Public Facilities Committee Meeting May 18, 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Purchasing Department recommends that the Public Facilities Committee recommend approval to 
County Council to allowing the County Administrator to negotiate a contract award with Creech & Associates for the Master Plan 
Services as referenced in the RFQ 071019 for a contract cost of $298,840. 
 
 CC: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator 
 Christopher Inglese, Deputy Administrator 
 Alica Holland, Assistant County Administrator, Finance 
 Mark Roseneau, Director of Facilities 
 
Att: Scoring Summary, Creech & Associates Proposal 



                                                                    

Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6 

 
 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  2 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  3 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  4 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 
 

 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Beaufort County SNA FMP Proposal DRAFT 6  7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RF
Q

  0
71

01
9

Su
m

m
ar

y S
co

re
 Sh

ee
t

In
te

rv
ie

w
s o

n 
10

.2
4.

20
19

Ev
al

ua
to

rs
Na

m
e 

of
 C

om
pa

ny
Na

m
e 

of
 C

om
pa

ny
 

Na
m

e 
of

 C
om

pa
ny

   
Na

m
e 

of
 C

om
pa

ny
   

Cr
ee

ch
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Gl
ick

 &
 B

oe
hm

W
es

to
n 

&
 S

am
ps

on
Be

au
fo

rt
 D

es
ig

n 
Bu

ild
P.

 F
oo

t
73

59
52

66
A.

 H
ol

la
nd

95
62

81
89

C.
 In

gl
es

e
97

74
73

90
A.

 Ja
co

bs
90

45
70

75
R.

 M
cF

ee
93

88
75

81
M

. R
os

en
ea

u
94

86
83

94
M

. S
pe

lls
90

80
75

80
D.

 W
ilh

el
m

86
81

71
86

TO
TA

LS
:

71
8

57
5

58
0

66
1

Cr
ee

ch
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

1
71

8
Be

au
fo

rt
 D

es
ig

n 
Bu

ild
2

66
1

W
es

to
n 

&
 S

am
ps

on
3

58
0

Gl
ick

 &
 B

oe
hm

4
57

5

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
M

as
te

r P
la

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s



-  DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

 
 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

 
Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

 
Issues for Consideration: 

 
Points to Consider: 

 
Funding & Liability Factors: 

 
Council Options: 

 
Recommendation: 

Update - Information on Convenience Center Decals - Goldsmith Report

Public Facilities Committee

May 18, 2020

Dave Wilhelm, Assistant County Administrator Public Works and Sustainability; Cindy Carter, Director - Solid Waste and Recycling

Update status on decal program implementation

Information only



- DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

Issues for Consideration: 

Points to Consider: 

Funding & Liability Factors: 

Council Options: 

Recommendation: 

Contractual Negotiations and Refund Request from Zinn Investments III, LLC.

Public Facilities Committee

May 18, 2020

Christopher Inglese, AICP, Deputy County Administrator

Mr. Tom Zinn is requesting $40,000 refund in relation to a Settlement Agreement between Beaufort
County and Zinn Investments III, LLC dated February 13, 2013.

Please see the attached memo from Brittanee Fields, Beaufort County Engineering Sr.
Administrative Specialist.

No funding account has been identified.

Refund the requested amount or something less.
Decline to provide a refund.

Staff does not recommend a refund to Mr. Zinn nor execution of proposed Amendment to the
Settlement Agreement.





SC
 H

W
Y 

17
0 

- Z
IN

N 
TU

RN
 LA

NE
S

YR
/P

R
JN

L
EF

F 
DA

TE
SR

C
RE

F1
CO

M
M

EN
T

VE
N

DO
R

CH
EC

K 
#

 A
M

O
UN

T 
13

/1
1

20
40

05
/3

0/
13

GE
N

SC
17

0
SC

17
0 

W
ID

EN
IN

G 
PA

YM
EN

T
(4

28
,8

40
.0

0)
   

16
/ 6

23
2

12
/0

9/
15

AP
I

00
79

34
SC

 1
70

 T
UR

NI
NG

 LA
NE

S
AC

CU
RA

TE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CT

IO
86

67
32

17
1.

72
   

   
   

   
16

/ 6
33

7
12

/1
5/

15
AP

I
00

79
34

BI
D 

DO
CU

M
EN

TS
: S

C 
17

0 
TU

RN
 LA

N
AC

CU
RA

TE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CT

IO
86

71
89

16
9.

01
   

   
   

   
16

/ 7
97

1
01

/3
1/

16
AP

I
00

79
34

SC
 1

70
 T

UR
N 

LA
NE

S
AC

CU
RA

TE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CT

IO
86

97
71

85
.1

0
   

   
   

   
  

17
/ 3

82
5

09
/3

0/
16

AP
I

01
36

15
HW

Y 
17

0/
ZI

NN
 E

VA
LU

AT
IO

N
BO

W
M

AN
 C

O
NS

UL
TI

NG
 G

R
88

42
30

4,
03

0.
00

   
   

   
14

/1
2

20
16

06
/3

0/
14

AP
I

01
20

60
SC

 1
70

 W
ID

EN
IN

G:
 T

UR
N 

LA
NE

S-
JU

IN
FR

AS
TR

UC
TU

RE
 C

O
NS

83
96

70
9,

54
3.

27
   

   
   

15
/ 2

12
16

08
/3

1/
14

AP
I

01
20

60
ZI

IN
N 

TU
RN

 LA
NE

S 
DE

SI
GN

: A
UG

14
IN

FR
AS

TR
UC

TU
RE

 C
O

NS
84

35
51

1,
33

6.
34

   
   

   
15

/ 3
13

05
09

/3
0/

14
AP

I
01

20
60

ZI
NN

 T
UR

N 
LA

NE
S:

 S
EP

T 
20

14
IN

FR
AS

TR
UC

TU
RE

 C
O

NS
84

45
70

3,
58

8.
45

   
   

   
15

/ 4
13

46
10

/3
1/

14
AP

I
01

20
60

SC
 1

70
 C

EI
 Z

IIN
N 

TU
RN

 LA
NE

S
IN

FR
AS

TR
UC

TU
RE

 C
O

NS
84

58
43

83
4.

89
   

   
   

   
16

/ 2
13

90
08

/3
1/

15
AP

I
01

20
60

SC
 1

70
 Z

IN
N 

TU
RN

 LA
NE

: A
UG

 2
01

IN
FR

AS
TR

UC
TU

RE
 C

O
NS

86
35

49
2,

24
2.

14
   

   
   

16
/ 6

92
0

12
/3

1/
15

AP
I

00
02

32
44

66
46

: B
ID

 A
DV

: S
C 

17
0 

TU
RN

 L
IS

LA
ND

 P
AC

KE
T

86
79

39
10

3.
78

   
   

   
   

17
/ 1

63
4

07
/0

1/
16

AP
I

00
81

10
PA

Y 
#1

-S
C1

70
 T

UR
N 

LA
NE

S 
JU

L2
01

LA
NE

(R
EA

)C
O

NS
T.

88
18

21
20

2,
95

5.
00

   
 

17
/ 2

53
9

08
/3

1/
16

AP
I

00
81

10
PA

Y 
#2

-C
O

NS
TR

 S
C1

70
 T

UR
N 

LA
NE

S
LA

NE
(R

EA
)C

O
NS

T.
88

24
25

16
6,

41
9.

94
   

 
17

/ 6
19

4
12

/0
1/

16
AP

I
00

81
10

PA
Y 

#3
-F

IN
AL

 S
C1

70
 T

UR
N 

LA
NE

S
LA

NE
(R

EA
)C

O
NS

T.
88

73
48

49
,1

70
.2

0
   

   
TO

TA
L E

XP
EN

DE
D 

FO
R 

ZI
N

N
 T

UR
N

 LA
N

ES
44

0,
64

9.
84

$ 
 



YEAR JOURNAL EFF DATE AMOUNT CHECK NO WARRANT VDR NAME/ITEM DESC COMMENTS
2014 476 11/1/2014 154,000.00$       845573 11212014 MURPHY LAW OFFICES, LLC SC 170 RIGHT OF WAY TRACT 8C
2014 834 08/31/2013 98.28$                 828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68B SC170 WIDENING
2014 834 08/31/2013 259.12$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68-SC170 WIDENING
2014 834 08/31/2013 366.42$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 65A-SC170 WIDENING
2014 834 08/31/2013 258.02$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68A-SC170 WIDENING
2014 834 08/31/2013 257.54$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68B-SC170 WIDENING
2014 893 07/31/2013 255.12$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68C SC170 WIDENING
2014 893 07/31/2013 412.47$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 65-SC170 WIDENING
2014 893 07/31/2013 270.64$               828058 01172014 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC LEGAL TRACT 68D-SC170 WIDENING
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 828.88$               817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 1,074.38$           817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 672.96$               817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B,LLC/NBSC/SYNVOU
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 1,094.38$           817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A,LLC/SYNOVUS BAN
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 1,315.46$           817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 995.38$               817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 1,221.50$           817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,218 05/31/2013 1,085.58$           817942 06142013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B,LLC/NBSC/SYNOVO
2013 1,003 03/31/2013 1,651.16$           814262 04052013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A/NBSC/SYNOVOUS M
2013 1,003 03/31/2013 714.80$               814262 04052013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC/SYNOVOUS M
2013 1,003 03/31/2013 786.32$               814262 04052013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC/SYNOVOUS B
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,586.70$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68 PARCEL 8B
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,451.55$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 65A PARCEL 8A
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,725.69$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68C PARCEL 8B
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,978.32$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 69 PARCEL 8B
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,571.10$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68A PARCEL 8B
2013 959 02/28/2013 1,161.62$           812097 03082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A, LLC PARCEL 67
2013 924 01/31/2013 1,304.92$           811014 02082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68D PARCEL 8 B
2013 924 01/31/2013 1,529.97$           811014 02082013 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 65 PARCEL 8A
2013 734 09/28/2012 433.76$               807746 10112012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68B PARCEL 8B
2013 528 08/31/2012 393.26$               806864 09132012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC/TRACT 68
2013 528 08/31/2012 366.26$               806864 09132012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC TRACT 69
2013 528 08/31/2012 406.76$               806864 09132012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC TRACT 68D
2013 528 08/31/2012 244.77$               806864 09132012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A/NBSC/TRACT 65 P
2013 528 08/31/2012 474.27$               806864 09132012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A/NBSC/TRACT 65A
2013 425 08/31/2012 379.76$               806642 09062012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/NBSC/SYNOVOUS M
2012 825 06/30/2012 6,000.00$           804803 07062012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACTS 65/65A/68/68A/68B/68C/6
2012 695 05/25/2012 310.50$               803655 06012012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A/LLC TRACT 65
2012 695 05/25/2012 708.65$               803655 06012012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/LLC TRACT 68
2012 695 05/25/2012 708.45$               803655 06012012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/LLC TRACT 69
2012 695 05/25/2012 708.45$               803655 06012012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8B/LLC TRACT 68A
2012 162 04/01/2012 870.45$               802541 04202012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V NBSC PARCEL 8B TRACT 68C
2012 162 04/01/2012 767.06$               802541 04202012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V PARCEL 8A TRACT 65A-NBSC
2012 494 03/01/2012 1,263.00$           801679 03232012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68B STP-03
2012 494 03/01/2012 762.45$               801679 03232012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V TRACT 68D STP-03
2012 71 02/01/2012 1,872.45$           800293 02102012 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC BC V NBSC/SYNOVOUS TRACT 65
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,094.79$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 65A-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,066.95$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 69-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,053.45$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68D-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,093.95$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68C-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,054.29$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68A-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,074.10$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 264 11/22/2011 1,026.65$           708484 12022011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 65-STP03-LEGAL SVS
2012 323 09/12/2011 197,580.00$       706700 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 69-SC170-STP03- PARCEL 8
2012 323 09/12/2011 64,170.00$         706701 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68D-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 8
2012 323 09/12/2011 59,840.00$         706702 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68C-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 6
2012 323 09/12/2011 68,280.00$         706703 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68B-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 6
2012 323 09/12/2011 69,700.00$         706704 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68A-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 8
2012 323 09/12/2011 81,800.00$         706705 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 68-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 8B
2012 323 09/12/2011 61,250.00$         706706 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 65A-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 8
2012 323 09/12/2011 99,470.00$         706707 09302011 STUCKEY LAW OFFICE, LLC TRACT 65-SC170-STP03-PARCEL 8A

906,152.76$       





























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Documents submitted by Tom Zinn 
 























































































-  DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE - 
Created January 2019 

 
 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

Item Title: 

Council Committee: 

Meeting Date: 

 
Committee Presenter (Name and Title): 

 
Issues for Consideration: 

 
Points to Consider: 

 
Funding & Liability Factors: 

 
Council Options: 

 
Recommendation: 

Discussion of Hilton Head Island convenience Center

Public Facilities Committee

May 18, 2020

Requested by Councilmember Covert

Options for continuing operations of the Hilton Head Island convenience center.
Option 1. MOU/IGA with the Town of Hilton Head to pay for the cost of operating the center
Option 2. Provide an end date to County operations of the convenience center

Cost to county operations for providing the service impacts the county's general fund. Town of
Hilton Head recently eliminated $3.2 million dollar payment for sheriff services having a material
detrimental impact on the county's general fund.

General fund operations are tight under the current circumstances. There is no legal requirement
that the county operate a convenient center for the Town of Hilton Head.

1. maintain the status quo
2. enter into an MOU/IGA with the Town and receive payment for the services
3. provide an end date to the Town and eliminate the service at that location

Staff recommends either option 2 or option 3.


	Top
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. FOIA
	4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	5. April 20, 2020
	AIS -4-20-20 minutes draft -1

	6. Fremont Preserve Roadway Improvements
	AgendaitempacketFortFreemontRoadwayprojectPFC051820

	7. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ACCESS AND PARKING EASEMENT ON COUNTY PROPERTY REFERRED TO AS MYRTLE PARK
	Myrtle Park Parking Agreement AIS Public Facilities Committee 5-18-20

	8. Request authority for the County Administrator to negotiate a contract award for RFQ 071019 Facilities Master Plan Consulting Services for a total cost of $298,840.
	New Agenda Item SummaryPFCmeeting051820FacilitiesMasterPlanningServicesCreech

	9. Update status on decal program implementation
	05 18 2020 AIS Public Facilities Committee Goldsmith Report Decal Program

	10. Refund Request from Zinn Investments III, LLC.
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities Committee 051820 - Tom Zinn

	11. Discussion of Hilton Head Island Convenience Center
	AIS HHI convenience center 1

	12. CITIZEN COMMENT
	13. ADJOURNMENT
	Bottom

